
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

August 06, 2019  9:30 am 
  

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jonathan McCollar 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman John Riggs 
 

3. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
 

4. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
A) Approval of Minutes 

a) 07-16-2019 Council Minutes 
 

B) Consideration of a Motion to Accept the high bid for a bloc of firearms to be sold as 
surplus 
 

5. Public Hearing & Consideration of a Motion to approve application for an alcohol license 
Sec. 6-5 
 

A) Namaste Boro LLC 
     DBA: Primos Italian Kitchen 
     Ian Munger 
     609 Brannen St Ste 9 
     Statesboro, GA 30458 

 
B) ALDI Inc. 
     DBA: ALDI #85 
     ALDI Inc. 

                             270 Henry Boulevard 
                             Statesboro, GA 30458 

 
6. Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to provide general liability insurance to 

Travelers in the amount of $524,609.00. If approved, this coverage will be for a one-year 
term beginning August 14, 2019.  
 

7. Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to provide workers compensation 
insurance to Bitco in the amount of $288,323.00. If approved, this coverage will be for a 
one-year term beginning August 14, 2019. 
 

8. Consideration of a Motion to enter into a Mutual Aid Agreement between the Claxton 
Fire Department and the Statesboro Fire Department. 
 
  



 
 

9. Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2019-27: A Resolution allowing Forth 
State Productions use of the Statesboro Fire Department Training Facilities. 

 
10. Other Business from City Council 
 
11.  City Managers Comments 
 
12. Public Comments (General) 

 
13. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” 

“Real Estate” and/or “Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A 50-14-3(b) 
 

14. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                                   COUNCIL MINUTES 
               JULY 16th, 2019                                                            5:30 PM 

 

  

July 16, 2019 5:30 pm 
  

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Jonathan McCollar called the meeting to order  
 

2. Invocation and Pledge 
Councilman Jeff Yawn gave the Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.

 
ATTENDENCE  
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Jonathan McCollar Mayor Present  
Phil Boyum Councilmember Present    
Sam Jones Councilmember Absent  
Jeff Yawn Councilmember Present  
John Riggs Councilmember Present  
Derek Duke Councilmember Present  
 

Other staff present was: City Manager Charles Penny, Director of Engineering and Public Works 
Jason Boyles, City Attorney Cain Smith and City Clerk Sue Starling.  
  

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations:  None 
 
4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 06-18-2019 Council Minutes 
b) 06-26-2019 Called Council Minutes 

 
A motion was made to approve the consent agenda 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 
 
 
 

Unanimous   

  Councilman John Riggs 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   



 
 

2 
 

6. Public Hearing & Consideration of a Motion to approve application for an alcohol 
license Sec. 6-5 

A) M L Associates Inc.  
DBA Discount Beverage 
Lav Valik 

            1285 Northside Dr. E  
            Statesboro, GA 30458 
 

 A motion was made to open the public hearing 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 
 

 
No one spoke for or against the request. 
 
A motion was made to close the public hearing 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 
A motion was made to approve the alcohol license application. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 
 
 

Unanimous   

  Councilman John Riggs 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman Jeff Yawn 

 Councilman John Riggs 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman John Riggs 

 Councilman Derek Duke 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   



 
 

3 
 

7. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION RZ 19-06- 
01: West District Development, LLC requests a zoning map amendment for a proposed 
combination of parcels addressed 40 West Cherry Street and West Cherry Street from 
the LI (Light Industrial) zoning district to the CBD (Central Business District) zoning 
district to allow for the construction of a mixed-use development (Tax Parcels S18 
000170 000 and S19 000001 A000). 

 
A motion was made to open the public hearing 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 
 

 
Brian Kent spoke in favor of the request. 
A motion was made to close the public hearing 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 
A motion was made to approve APPLICATION RZ 19-06- 01   with staff’s conditions. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 
 
 

Unanimous   

  Councilman Derek Duke 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman Jeff Yawn 

 Councilman John Riggs 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman Derek Duke 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   



 
 

4 
 

8.  Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION V 19-06-
02:  West District Development, LLC requests a variance from Article XII, Section 
1213(A) to reduce the required front yard setback in order to create a zero-lot-line 
parcel for the redevelopment of an existing warehouse building on 0.892 acres, a 
portion of a larger 2.44 acre tract located at 40 West Cherry Street (Tax Parcel S18 
000170 000). 

 
A motion was made to open the public hearing for items 8 thru 13. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
No one spoke for or against the request. 
 
A motion was made to close the public hearing for items 8 thru 13. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 
A motion was made to approve APPLICATION V 19-06- 02 with staff’s conditions. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 
 
 

Unanimous   

  Councilman Phil Boyum 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman Derek Duke 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman John Riggs 

 Councilman Derek Duke 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   



 
 

5 
 

9. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION V 19-06-
03: West District Development, LLC requests a variance from Article XII, Section 
1213(B) to reduce the required left side yard setback in order to create a zero-lot-line 
parcel for the redevelopment of an existing warehouse building on 0.892 acres, a 
portion of a larger 2.44 acre tract located at 40 West Cherry Street (Tax Parcel S18 
000170 000). 

 
A motion was made to approve APPLICATION V 19-06- 03 with staff’s conditions. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 

10. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION V 19-06-
04: West District Development, LLC requests a variance from Article XII, Section 
1213(B) to reduce the required right side yard setback in order to create a zero-lot-line 
parcel for the redevelopment of an existing warehouse building on 0.892 acres, a 
portion of a larger 2.44 acre tract located at 40 West Cherry Street (Tax Parcel S18 
000170 000) 

 
A motion was made to approve APPLICATION V 19-06- 04 with staff’s conditions. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 

11. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION V 19-06-
05: West District Development, LLC requests a variance from Article XII, Section 
1213(C) to reduce the required rear yard setback in order to create a zero-lot-line 
parcel for the redevelopment of an existing warehouse building on 0.892 acres, a 
portion of a larger 2.44 acre tract located at 40 West Cherry Street (Tax Parcel S18 
000170 000). 

 

A motion was made to approve APPLICATION V 19-06- 05 with staff’s conditions. 
 

  RESULT: 

Unanimous   

  Councilman Phil Boyum 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman Jeff Yawn 

 Councilman John Riggs 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   



 
 

6 
 

 
  MOVER: 

 
  SECONDER: 

 
  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 

12. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION V 19-06-
06: West District Development, LLC requests a variance from Article XXX, Section 
3010 regarding the requirement to provide sidewalks along the public right-of-way in 
the Downtown District for 2.44 acres of property located at 40 West Cherry Street  (Tax 
Parcel S18 000170 000). 

 
A motion was made to approve APPLICATION V 19-06- 06 with staff’s conditions. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 

13. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION V 19-06-
07: West District Development, LLC requests a variance from Article XII, Section 1216 
to increase the minimum floor area ratio percentage in order to create zero-lot-line 
parcel for the redevelopment of an existing warehouse building on 0.892 acres, a 
portion of a larger 2.44 acre tract located at 40 West Cherry Street (Tax Parcel S18 
000170 000). 

 
A motion was made to approve APPLICATION V 19-06- 07 with staff’s conditions. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 
 
 

  Councilman Jeff Yawn 

 Councilman Phil Boyum 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman John Riggs 

 Councilman Derek Duke 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman Phil Boyum 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   



 
 

7 
 

14. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION CBD 19-
06-08: West District Development, LLC requests approval of the proposed site plans 
submitted for a proposed combination of parcels totaling 5.52 acres of property located 
at South College Street, 40 West Cherry Street and West Cherry Street, which is 
located in the Central Business District (CBD). Per Article VIII, Section 803, 
development in the CBD zoning district requires a recommendation from City Council 
to affirm that the plans will keep in mind the integrity and harmony of the Central 
Business District (Tax Parcels S19 000001 000, S18 000170 000, and S19 000001 A000). 

 
A motion was made to open the public hearing. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
No one spoke for or against the request. 
 
A motion was made to close the public hearing. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 
A motion was made to approve APPLICATION CBD 19-06- 08 with staff’s conditions. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 

Unanimous   

  Councilman Phil Boyum 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman Phil Boyum 

 Councilman John Riggs 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman John Riggs 

 Councilman Phil Boyum 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   



 
 

8 
 

15. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION RZ 19-06-
09: Continental Road, LLC requests a zoning map amendment of 4.74 acres, a portion 
of a larger 33.35+/- acre tract located at 7130 Veterans Memorial Parkway from the CR 
(Commercial Retail) zoning district to the HOC (Highway Oriented Commercial) 
zoning district to allow for the construction of a car dealership (Tax Parcel MS42 
000007 000). 

 
A motion was made to open the public hearing. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
Joey Maxwell spoke in favor of the request. 
A motion was made to close the public hearing. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 
A motion was made to approve APPLICATION RZ 19-06- 09 with staff’s conditions. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Unanimous   

  Councilman Derek Duke 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman Phil Boyum 

 Councilman Derek Duke 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman Derek Duke 

 Councilman John Riggs 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   



 
 

9 
 

16. Consideration of a Motion to Approve the Revision of the Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) with Bulloch County regarding City of Statesboro Tax Allocation 
District #1: Downtown TAD. 

 
A motion was made to approve IGA. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 
 
 

17. Consideration of a motion to approve Task Order 3 with Goldwyn Mills Cawood 
(formerly Ecological Planning Group) in the amount of $93,100.00 to assist the City of 
Statesboro with stormwater master planning for Basin #2 studies. 

 
A motion was made to approve the Task Order 3. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 
 
 

18. Consideration of a Motion to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with 
Bulloch County for Fire Protection Services in the Statesboro Fire Tax District, also 
known as the Statesboro 5-mile Fire District 

 
A motion was made to approve the IGA. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 
 
 

Unanimous   

  Councilman Derek Duke 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman Derek Duke 

 Councilman Phil Boyum 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman Phil Boyum 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   



 
 

10 
 

19. Consideration of a Motion to Approve RESOLUTION 2019-25: A Resolution 
authorizing the closing of the bank account for the 2007 Special Purpose Local Option 
Sales Tax fund. 

 
A motion was made to approve Resolution 2019-25. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 
 
 

20. Consideration of a Motion to Approve RESOLUTION 2019-26: A Resolution amending 
the job position classification and compensation plan. 

 
A motion was made to approve Resolution 2019-26. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 
 
 

21. Other Business from City Council 
 
Councilman Boyum asked for an update on the Blight Ordinance. City Attorney Cain Smith 
stated he could bring it forward at the next Council meeting. Mayor McCollar asked that we hold 
off until we know if the City will qualify for an assistance program to help with housing issues. 
 
Councilman Duke stated the Anti Bullying Rally will be held July 27th from 10-2 pm at Mill 
Creek and a Balloon Block Party will be held from 3-6pm at the Police Department. 

 
22.  City Managers Comments 
 
City Manager Charles Penny thanked Mayor and Council for the opportunity to serve as City 
Manager and looks forward to working with them as well as all the departments. He also stated 
he would like to meet with Mayor and Council to better understand their expectations and also 
discuss his ideas and plans for the City. 
 

 

Unanimous   

  Councilman John Riggs 

 Councilman Phil Boyum 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   

Unanimous   

  Councilman Phil Boyum 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   



 
 

11 
 

23. Public Comments (General) 
 
John from Boy Scout Troop 935 and Tony from Boy Scout Troop 332 were present as they are 
working to obtain their merit badges. 

 
24. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel 

Matters” “Real Estate” and/or “Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A 50-
14-3(b) 

 
There was no Executive Session held. 

 
25. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 

 
A motion was made to adjourn the meeting. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:36 pm. 

Unanimous   

  Councilman Phil Boyum 

 Councilman John Riggs 

  Boyum, Yawn, Riggs, Duke   
 
Sam Jones   













































CITY OF STATESBORO 
 
 
 
 
 

 
COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Derek Duke, District 

 
 
 

 
     50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. Box 348 

STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459·0348 

 
Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 

Charles Penny, City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

   To:                  Charles Penny, City Manager 
 From: Darren Prather, Central Services Director  
 Date: July 29th, 2019 
 RE:    Recommendation: General Liability and Workers Comp Insurance Renewal 
 
Recommendations: 
We recommend the renewal for the provision of general liability insurance be awarded to Travelers in the amount of $524,609.00 
and we recommend Bitco to be awarded the renewal for the provision of workers compensation insurance in the amount of 
$288,323.00. This coverage, if approved, will begin on August 14, 2019 and will provide coverage for the term of one year.  
 
Background: 
The City of Statesboro is in the second year of a three-year contract with Glenn Davis and Associates that serves as our general 
liability and workers compensation insurance brokers. They are responsible for shopping the market for renewals as well as 
assisting Human Resources and the Central Services in the yearly management of these two insurance program areas.  These two 
areas of coverage involve general liability (property/vehicles/equipment, personnel) coverage and workers compensation coverage. 
An umbrella coverage of $5,000,000 is also included in this package as well. This coverage extends over both the general liability 
and workers compensation areas and will be provided by Travelers. Following, is a comparison of last year’s premiums and the 
premiums recommended for this year’s renewal. The coverage limits provided by these policies are $2,000,000 aggregate and 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for the general liability policy and a $1,000,000 aggregate for the workers compensation policy. The 
$5,000,000 umbrella policy provided by Travelers will extend over both the general liability policy as well as the workers 
compensation policy per an agreement between Travelers and Bitco. This provides a potential maximum coverage amount of 
$7,000,000 for general liability insurance and $6,000,000 for workers compensation insurance. 
 
2018-2019 Premiums     2019-2020 Premiums 
General Liability    $493,126.00  General Liability   $524,609.00 
Workers Compensation  $383,882.41  Workers Compensation  $288,323.00 
Total     $877,008.41  Total    $812,932.00 
 
Note: The initial premium for 2018-2019 produced a total of $800,045 ($480,143 General Liability and $319,902 Workers 
Compensation). For the purpose of an accurate comparison, the 2018-2019 premiums have been adjusted to allow for added 
vehicles/equipment and the recent change in our payroll amount.  
 
The 2019-2020 premium represents an offering from Travelers (current carrier) for our general liability coverage and from Bitco 
for our workers compensation coverage. Our current carrier for workers compensation coverage is Travelers who offered a renewal 
premium of $389,149.00 versus the offer from Bitco of $288,323.00 (included in above 2019-2020 Total). Both of these carriers 
have a high market rating by the insurance industry.  
 
 
Council Person and District: All 
Attachments: Recommendation Letter from Insurance Consultant/Glenn Davis 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence · Certified City of Ethics 
Telephone: (912) 764·5468 • Fax: (912) 764·4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

mailto:cityhall@statesboroga.net




Statesboro Fire Department 
Proudly serving the City of Statesboro and 

surrounding communities since 1905! 
 

   

24 West Grady Street | Statesboro, GA 30458 
Phone: (912) 764-3473 | Fax: (912) 681-7205 

 

Timothy E. Grams 
Fire Chief 

Jonathan M. McCollar 
Mayor 

City Council Agenda Memorandum 
 
To: Charles Penny, City Manager 
 
From: Timothy E. Grams, Fire Chief 
 
Date: 7-29-2019 
 
RE: Mutual Aid Agreement with Claxton Fire Department 
 
Policy Issue: N/A 
 
Recommendation: Approval - Execution of the agreement requires Mayor and Fire 
Chief Signatures. 
 
Background: Staff received a request from the City of Claxton to update a Mutual Aid 
Agreement for Fire Services.  Agreement was reviewed by staff and recommends 
approving agreement. 
 
Budget Impact: N/A 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
Attachments: Mutual Aid Agreement supplied by City of Claxton Fire Department and 
accompanying letter. 
  









Statesboro Fire Department 
Proudly serving the City of Statesboro and 

surrounding communities since 1905! 
 

   

24 West Grady Street | Statesboro, GA 30458 
Phone: (912) 764-3473 | Fax: (912) 681-7205 

 

Timothy E. Grams 
Fire Chief 

Jonathan M. McCollar 
Mayor 

City Council Agenda Memorandum 
 
To: Charles Penny, City Manager 
 
From: Timothy E. Grams, Fire Chief 
 
Date: 7-29-2019 
 
RE: Resolution allowing Fourth State Productions use of the Statesboro Fire Department 
Training Facilities 
 
Policy Issue: N/A 
 
Recommendation: Approval  
 
Background: The Fire Department received a request from Fourth State Productions to 
utilize the FD Training Facilities located at 301 North for a production project.  Fourth 
State Productions has submitted all required documentation and information which 
has been reviewed by the City Attorney.  
 
Budget Impact: N/A 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
Attachments: Resolution Allowing Fourth State Productions use of the FD Training 
Facilities, a signed copy of the Hold Harmless Agreement and Certificate of Liability 
Insurance. 
  



Resolution Regarding Allowing Forth State Productions Use Of The Statesboro Fire 
Department Training Facilities 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-27

A RESOLUTION ALLOWING FORTH STATE PRODUCTIONS USE OF THE 
STATESBORO FIRE DEPARTMENT TRAINING FACILITIES  

WHEREAS Fourth State Productions has requested the use of the Statesboro Fire Department 
Training Center Facilities located at 301 North for dates and times to be determined between 
August 8th, 2019 and November 30th, 2019;  

WHEREAS Dates and times requested by Fourth State Productions to utilize said facilities will 
be approved by the Fire Chief or their designee; 

WHEREAS Fourth State Productions agrees to adhere to rules, regulations and terms set forth by 
the Statesboro Fire Department while using Training Facilities and/or on the Training Facility 
property; 

WHEREAS Fourth States Productions has provided Certificate of Liability Insurance with the 
City of Statesboro as the named Certificate Holder;  

WHEREAS Fourth State Productions has signed a Hold Harmless Agreement as well as 
acknowledges responsibility and obligations for any damages sustained as a result of their use of 
the Training Facilities; and 

WHEREAS Fourth State Productions agrees to pay applicable fees for the use of said training 
facilities as negotiated and approved by the Statesboro Fire Department;  

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia while in 
regular session on August 6, that Fourth State Productions are granted access and use of 
the Statesboro Fire Department Training Facilities located at 301 North, Statesboro 
during dates and times approved by the Statesboro Fire Department for fees negotiated 
and/or assessed by the Statesboro Fire Department. 

City of Statesboro, Georgia 

_______________________ 
Jonathan J McCollar, Mayor 

Attest: 

_______________________ 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 





The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

7/25/2019

Integro USA Inc.
1 State Street Plaza
9th Floor
New York NY 10004

Jessica Martinez
212-702-3326 212-702-3376

jessica.martinez@integrogroup.com

QBE Insurance Corporation 39217
ITVAMER-HN

ITV US Holdings, Inc & its subsidiaries including
Fourth State Productions Inc
460 West 34th Street
16th floor
New York NY 10001

General Casualty Company Wisconsin 24414
Federal Insurance Company 20281
Allianz Global Corporate & Specialty (lead)

1718041995

A X 1,000,000
X 1,000,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

X

Y Y CGA1232808 06/28/2019
12:01 am

06/28/2020
12:01 am

2,000,000

B 2,000,000

XX
X Phys Damage

Y Y CBA1232808
Auto Physical Damage
At Actual Cash Value
at the time of loss
Deductible $3,000

06/28/2019
12:01 am

06/28/2020
12:01 am

Phys Damage ACV

A X X 10,000,000Y Y CCU1232808

X
10,000,000

06/28/2019
12:01 am

10,000

06/28/2020
12:01 am

C

N

Y 79941130 03/01/2019
12:01 am

03/01/2020
12:01 am

X
1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000
D Production Equipment

Props/Sets/Wardrobe
Third Party Property Damage

GBP000782116
Transit $2,000,000

06/29/2019 06/28/2020 Each Limit
Deductible

5,000,000
5,000

The Certificate Holder(s) are hereby included as Additional Insured on a primary and non-contributory basis with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the
Additional Insureds where required by written contract, agreement or permit with the Named Insured. Certificate holder is also included as a Loss Payee under
the property policy but only as respects to their agreement with the Named Insured. A 30 Day Notice of Cancellation is provided where required by written
contract. No unattended vehicle exclusion applies.

City Of Statesboro
50 E. Main Street
Statesboro GA 30458
United States


	08-06-2019 Council Agenda
	07-16-2019 Council Minutes
	Firearms surplus
	Primos Alcohol
	Aldi alcohol
	Gen WC Ins Rec 1 Memo
	Broker Rec Letter
	Memo - Mutual Aid Agreement-Claxton-7-2019 (1)
	Claxton Mutual Aid Agreement-2019
	2019-27  Memo  Fourth State Productions-7-2019
	2019-27  Resolution-Fourth State Productions-7-2019
	2019-27 Fourth State Hold Harmless Agreement 07-26-19
	2019-27 Fourth State Productions-Certification of Insurance-7-2019

